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S.150

Introduced by Committee on Transportation

Date: March 13, 2013

Subject: Motor vehicles; enforcement officers; transporters; placards for
persons with disabilities; el ectronic registrations; trailer registration
fees; deders; reciprocal recognition of license suspensions; recall of
junior operator’s license or learner’ s permit; license certificates;
nondriver identification cards; driver training instructors; concurrent
suspensions; sirens and signal lamps; Motor Vehicle Arbitration
Board administration; complaints for traffic violations; default
judgments; texting while driving; registration, titling, and inspection
cost recovery fees

Statement of purpose of bill asintroduced: Thisbill proposesto make

mi scellaneous amendments to laws related to motor vehicles and to

enforcement of motor vehicle laws.

An act relating to miscellaneous amendments to laws related to motor
vehicles

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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It is hereby enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Vermont:

"

1. 23V.S.A. §4(11) isamended to read:
1) “Enforcement officers’ shall include:

(A thefollowing persons certified pursuant to 20 V.S.A. § 2358:

sheriffs, deputisheriffs, constables whose authority has not been limited under

24 V.S.A. 8 1936aNpolice officers, state's attorneys, capitol police officers,

motor vehicle inspectoxs, state game wardens, and state police-and;

(B) for enforcemapt of offenses relating to parking of motor vehicles,
meter checkers; and other dulyNauthorized employees of a municipality
employed to assist in the enforc t of parking regulations—Enfereement
officers’™ shall also tnctude;

(C) for enforcement of nonmoving traffic violations enumerated in

subdivisions 2302(a)(1), (2), (3), and (4) of thistitle, duly authorized

employees of the

Department of Motor Vehicles. Such employees may Msue complaints related

to-theiradministrative duties; pursdantto-4-\-S:A--8-1105\n accordance with

4V.SA. §1105.

Sec. 2. 23V.SA. 8§4(11) isamended to read:

(11) “Enforcement officers’ shall include:

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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(C) for enforcement of Wonmoving traffic violations enumerated in

subdivisions 2302(a)(1), (2), (3), akM) of thistitle, duly authorized
o T

Department of Motor Vehicles. Such empldyees may issue complaints related

employees of the

tothelradministrative duties; in accordance with

4V.SA. 8§1105.

Sec. 3. 23V.SA. §4(42) isamended to read:
(42) “Transporter” shall mean a person engaged in thg business of

delivering vehicles of atype required to be registered hereundeNfrom a

manufacturing, assembling, or distributing plant to dealers or sales{gents of a

manufacturer, and includes persons regularly engaged in the business

towing trailer coaches, owned by them or temporarily in their custody, on tReir

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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theém or temporarily in their custody, on their own wheels over public
highways;; persons regularly engaged and properly licensed for the short-term
rental of “§orage trailers’ owned by them and who move these storage trailers
on their own Wheels over public highwaysand; persons regularly engaged in
the business of mlying modular homes over public highways; and shal-alse
Haetude dealers and alyomobile repair shop owners when engaged in the
transportation of motor v&hicles to and from their place of business for repair
purposes. “Transporter” shal\also include ether personsfirms-or

commeon-and-usual-neident-to-the toling overwidth trailers owned by themin

connection with their business, or Wh(;busi ness is the repossession of motor

vehicles ineconnectionwith provided that %transportation and delivery of

motor vehiclesis acommon and usual incident 1§ their business. For purposes

of this subdivision, “short-term rental” shall mean a\eriod of less than one

year. Before a person may become licensed as atranspd(ter, he or she shall
present proof of compliance with section 800 of thistitle. or she shall also
either own or lease a permanent place of business located in thiSstate State

where business shall be conducted during regularly established bu

and the required records stored and maintained.

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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£ x * DlosardetorBorconswith-Dicobiitiesr £ &

4. 23V.SA. 8 304a(c) is amended to read:

(c) W ehicleswith special registration plates or removable windshield

may use the specia parking spaces when:

placard is displayed #-thelowerright side-of-the

(A) by hanging\t from the front windshield rearview mirror in such a

manner that it may be vi ew>}drom the front and rear of the vehicle; or

(B) if thevehicle haskrearvi ew mirror, on the dashboard:;

(2) the plateis mounted as proyided in section 511 of thistitle; or

(3) the plate is mounted or the plasard displayed as provided by the law

of the state jurisdiction where the vehicleis
* * * Temporary Registratigns * * *
Sec. 5. 23 V.SA. § 305(d) is amended to read:

(d) When aregistration for a motor vehicle, snowmobile, motorboat, or

all-terrain vehicle is processed electronically, a receipt shalNoe available for

printing. The receipt shall serve as atemporary registration. bevdid, the
temporary registration shall be in the possession of the operator at

and it shall expire ten days after the date of the transaction.

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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* k% Trﬁ”%ﬁ e % % %

6. 23V.SA. § 371(8)(1) isamended to read:

The one-year and two-year fees for registration of atrailer or

semi-trail
(A)

has a gross weighyof trailer and load of tessthan 1,500 pounds or less,

, except a contractor’ strailer or farm trailer, shall be asfollows:

5.00 and $48.00, respectively, when such trailer or semi-trailer

(B) $49.00 and $96.00, respectively, when such trailer or semi-trailer
has a gross weight of trailgr and load of more than 1,500 pounds ernere; and
isdrawn by avehicle of the peasure car type;

(C) $49.00 and $96.00,xespectively, when such trailer or semi-trailer
isdrawn by amotor truck or tractor, When such trailer or semi-trailer has a
gross weight of more than 1,500 pounds but retin-exeess-of less than
3,000 pounds;

(D) $49.00 and $96.00, respectively, when such trailer or semi-trailer
isused in combination with atruck-tractor or motorXruck registered at the fee
provided for combined vehicles under section 367 of thigtitle. Excepting for
the fees, the provisions of this subdivision shall not apply to\trailer coaches as
defined in section 4 of thistitle nor to modular homes being tr

trailer or semi-trailer.

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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7. 23V.SA. §451(b) isamended to read:

(b)\With the prior approval of the eermmissioner Commissioner, aVermont
dealer majx display vehicles on atemporary basis, but in no instance for more
than 10 14 dal)s, at fairs, shows, exhibitions, and other off-site locations within
the manufacturer™s stated area of responsibility in the franchise agreement. No
sales may be transactdd at these eff-site off-site locations. A dedler desiring to
display vehicles temporaN|y at an off-site location shall notify the
commissiener Commissioner\n a manner prescribed by the eemmissioner
Commissioner no less than two aqys prior to the first day for which approval is
requested.

* * * Reciprocal RecognitioM\of License Suspensions * * *
Sec. 8. 23V.S.A. 8603(c) isamended to r

(c) An Inaddition to any other requirement o€ law, an operator license,

junior operator license, or learner permit shall not b&renewed or issued to an

applicant whose license e, junior operator license, learier permit, privilege to

operate, nonresident privilege to operate, or right to apply f&r alicenseis

suspended, revoked er, canceled, or refused in any jurisdiction.

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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* % % _DAn e o Loy Ono

Qo a nor Dornai * % %

e, 9. 23V.SA. 8607aisamended to read:
8607, RECALL OF LEARNER'S PERMIT OR JUNIOR OPERATOR’S
L\CENSE

(@) A learngr’s permit or junior operator’s license shall contain an
admonition that itNs recallable and that the later procurement of an operator’s
license is conditional \n the establishment of arecord which is satisfactory to
the eommissioner Commhgsioner and showing compliance with the motor
vehicle laws of this and othef\states. The eemmissioner Commissioner may
recall any permit or license issuey to a minor whenever he or sheis satisfied,
from information provided by a credNle person and upon investigation, that
the operator is mentally or physically unit or, because of his or her habits or
record asto accidents or convictions, is unsae to be trusted with the operation
of motor vehicles. On recommendation of a divirsion or reparative board, the
commissioner Commissioner may recall the learnerg permit or junior
operator’ s license of a person in adiversion or reparativVg program for up to
30 days. The eommissioner Commissioner shall also recall\any learner’s
permit or junior operator’s license for 30 days when an operatoNi s adjudicated
of asingle texting violation under section 1099 of thistitle, 90 days\following
adjudication of a single speeding violation resulting in athree-point

assessment, 90 days when atotal of six points has been accumulated, or

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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Commissioner.
(b) When alicensgor permit is recalled under the provisions of this section,
the person whose license\Qr permit is so recalled shall have the same right of
hearing before the Commissioner asis provided in subsection
671(a) of thistitle.
(c) Except for arecall based solely upon the provisions of subsection (d) of
this section, any recall of alicense or it may extend past the operator’s
18th birthday. Whiletherecall is still in effect, that operator shall beineligible
for any operator’s license.
(d) The eemmissioner Commissioner shall recalNalearner’ s permit or
junior operator’s license upon written request of the indyidua’s custodial
parent or guardian.

(e) Any recall period under this section shall run concurrently with any

suspension period imposed under chapter 13 of thistitle.

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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§8l4. RIGHTS UNDER LICENSE

(a) \An operator’ s license shall entitle the holder to operate aregistered
motor vehicle with the consent of the owner whether employed to do so or not.

(b) A junidy operator’s license shall entitle the holder to operate a
registered motor Wehicle; with the consent of the owner, but shall not entitle
him or her to operate’y motor vehicle in the course of his or her employment or
for direct or indirect compensation for one year following issuance of the

license, except that the holdeNmay operate afarm tractor with or without

compensation upon apublic hinwav in going to and from different parts of a

farm of the tractor’s owner or to go t§ any repair shop for repair purposes. A

junior operator’s license shall not entitlethe holder to carry passengers for hire.
(c) During the first three months of operagion, the holder of ajunior

operator’slicenseisrestricted to driving alone oxwith alicensed parent or
guardian, licensed or certified driver education instryctor, or licensed person at
least 25 years of age. During the following three months, ajunior operator
may additionally transport family members. No person opexating with ajunior
operator’s license shall transport more passengers than there ara\safety belts
unless he or she is operating a vehicle that has not been manufacturgd with a

federally approved safety belt system. A person convicted of operatin

motor vehiclein violation of this subsection shall be subject to apenaltvb\not

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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9§'davs. The provisions of this subsection may be enforced only if alaw

enfor ent officer has detained the operator for a suspected violation of

another traffic offense.

N alalala
O

Sec. 11. 23 V.SA. § 615 isaqended to read:
§615. UNLICENSED OPERATORS

(@)(1) Anunlicensed person 15 y&ars of age or older; may operate a motor
vehicle; if he or she hastrpessession; pdssesses a valid learner’ s permit issued
to him or her by the eemmissioner Commissioner and if the his or her
licensed parent or guardian, licensed or certified\driver education instructor, or
alicensed person at least 25 years of age rides besidg him or her. Nothingin
this section shall be construed to permit a person agains\whom a revocation or
suspension of licenseisin force, or a person lessthan 15 yesrs of age, or a
person who has been refused alicense by the eermmissioner; COmmissioner to
operate amotor vehicle.

(2) A licensed person who does not possess a valid motorcycle

endorsement may operate a motorcycle, with no passengers, only during

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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m{orcycle learner’s permit issued to him or her by the commissioner

Comn\ssioner.

n-the same mstance he or-she mav-recallaprovisionallicense A

person convicted §f operating a motor vehiclein violation of this section shall

be subject to a penatwof not more than $50.00, and his or her learner’s permit

shall be recalled for a period of 90 days. No person may be issued traffic

complaints alleging avi olakn of this section and aviolation of section 676 of

thistitle from the sameinci denNhe provisions of this section may be

enforced only if alaw enforcement officer has detained the operator for a

suspected violation of another traffic off&nse.

Sec. 12. REPEAL

23 V.S.A. 8 678 (penalties for unauthorized Operation) is repeal ed.

* * * Magnetic Strips on Licenses and Idegtification Cards;
Residence Address * * *

Sec. 13. 23 V.SA. 8 115(i) is amended to read:
(i) An-identification-card-tssued-under-thissdbsection-to-anNadivie

alala ata alaWa ()_ch N ala aatalalala) - N-TNAl N a
v O U U -
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* k%

14. 23V.SA. 8§ 610 is amended to read:
8 610.\LICENSE CERTIFICATES

() Thaeommissioner Commissioner shall assign a distinguishing number
to each licensde and shall furnish the licensee with alicense certificate;
shewing that shows the number; and the licensee’ s full name, date of birth, and

residential addressu the listing of another address is authorized by law.

The certificate also shachl ude a brief physical description,-ane-maiing

address and a space for the signature of the licensee. The license shall be void

until signed by the licensee.

(c) Each license certificate issued to &first-time applicant and each
subsequent renewal by that person shall be iSsued with the photograph or
imaged likeness of the licensee included on the dertificate. The eermissioner

Commissioner shall determine the locations where photographic licenses may

person issued alicense under this subsection that contains an imageq likeness
may renew his or her license by mail. Except that arenewal by alicendge

required to have a photograph or imaged likeness under this subsection mu§

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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* * * Driver Training Instructor * * *
Sec. 15. 23WS.A. § 705 is amended to read:
§705. QUALIFIKATIONS FOR INSTRUCTOR'S LICENSE
In order to qualifyXor an instructor’s license, each applicant shall:
(1) not have been &Qnvicted of:

(A) afelony nor incgreerated for afelony within the 10 years prior to
the date of application; er

(B) aviolation of section 1801 of thistitle; or a cenviction like

offense in another jurisdiction reported t& the eemmissioner Commissioner

pursuant to subdivision 3905(a)(2) of this tithe within the three years prior to
the date of application; ef
(C) asubsequent eenvictionfor-an violatiog of an offense listed in

subdivision 2502(a)(5) of thistitle or of section 674 of tRistitle;

(D) asex offense that requires registration pursm% to 13 V.SA.

chapter 167, subchapter 3.

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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rk ke ConcHeRt-DIH-StHepenc-oReE-tt
e, 16. 23 V.S.A. § 1205(p) is amended to read:

(p) \Suspensions to run concurrently. Suspensions imposed under this
section or'gny comparabl e statute of any other jurisdiction and sections 1206,
1208, and 121§ of thistitle or any comparable statutes of any other
jurisdiction, or any suspension resulting from a conviction for aviolation of
section 1091 of this tife from the same incident, shall run concurrently and a
person shall receive crediy\for any elapsed period of a suspension served in

Vermont against alater suspeqQsion imposed in this state State. Hr-orderfor

alaVala a'a a¥lala' alla\ '« N<y far ol lchansion Na clicnancl on
- v | . v w, -

SLISH
-, C

Sec. 17. 23 V.SA. § 1216(i) is amended to ¥ead:

(i) Suspensionsimposed under this section oxany comparabl e statute of
any other jurisdiction shall run concurrently with suSpensions imposed under
sections 1205, 1206, and 1208 of thistitle or any compakgble statutes of any
other jurisdiction or with any suspension resulting from a cogviction for a
violation of section 1091 of thistitle from the same incident, arl§ a person shall
receive credit for any elapsed period of a suspension served in Vermont against

alater suspension imposed in this state State. +r-orderfor-suspension-exedit-to

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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* * * Srens and Lights on Exhibition Vehicles* * *
Sec. 18. 28 V.S.A. 8 1252 is amended to read:

§1252. Y OF ISSUANCE OF PERMITS FOR SIRENS OR COLORED

LAMPSQR BOTH; USE OF AMBER LAMPS

(8) When satisfiethas to the condition and use of the vehicle, the
commissioner Commissidper shall issue and may revoke, for cause, permits for
sirens or colored signal lamp¥,in the following manner:

(1) Sirensor blue or blue 2Qd white signal lamps, or a combination of

these, may be authorized for all law &pforcement vehicles; owned or leased by
alaw enforcement agency er, a certifiedaw enforcement officer aneHf, or the

Vermont Criminal Justice Training Council \If the applicant is a constable, the

application shall be accompanied by a certificatign by the town clerk that the
applicant is the duly elected or appointed constable §nd attesting that the town
has not voted to limit the constable' s authority to engag&in enforcement
activitiesunder 24 V.SA. § 1936a

(2) Sirensand red or red and white signal lamps may be authorized for

all ambulances, fire apparatus, vehicles used solely in rescue ope&\pns, or

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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usithe vehicle for emergency fire or rescue activities and-metorvehiclesused

/alla allda'al
V—N o viapw.

(3) No vehicle may be authorized a permit for more than one of the
combinations\§escribed in subdivisions (1) and (2) of this subsection.

(4) Netwithetanding subdivisior e (2) of this subsection.ne No
motor vehicle, other tRan one owned by the applicant, shall be issued a permit

until sueh-time-as the commissioner-can-adeguately-record Commissioner has

recorded the information regading both the owner of the vehicle and the
applicant for the permit.

(5) Upon application to the eekamissioner Commissioner, the
commissiener Commissioner may issue § single permit for all the vehicles
owned or leased by the applicant.

(6) Sirens and red or red and white signalN\amps, or sirens and blue or

blue and white signal lamps, may be authorized fo\wored emergency or

enforcement vehicles used for exhibition purposes. Sk(us and lamps

authorized under this subdivision may only be activated (b\nq an exhibition,

such as a car show or parade.

* * %

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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(@) Th&reis created aVermont metor-vehiele-arbitration-board Motor

Vehicle Arbithation Board consisting of five members and three alternate

members to be aprointed by the geverner Governor for terms of three years.
Board members may §e appointed for two additional three-year terms. One
member of the beard Boakd and one alternate shall be new car dealersin
Vermont, one member and oNg aternate shall be persons active as automobile
technicians, and three members aQd one alternate shall be persons having no

direct involvement in the design, maRufacture, distribution, sales, or service of

motor vehicles or their parts. Board mergbers shall be compensated in

servicesfrom-the department-of-metor-vehicles AdIYinistrative support for the

Board shall be provided as determined by the Secretaryof Transportation.

* * %

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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* % % Trﬂffin\linle* * %

20. 4V.S.A. 81105 is amended to read:
81105, ANSWER TO COMPLAINT; DEFAULT

(@ A Wolation shall be charged upon a summons and complaint form

complaint shall b&signed by the issuing officer or by the state’s attorney, and

the signature may be §ectronic. The original shall be filed with the judieiat

buread Judicial Bureau, d it may befiled el ectronicaly. An éectronic or

paper copy shall be retained By the issuing officer or state’s attorney and two
copies shall be given to the deferidant. The complaint shall include a statement
of rights, instructions, notice that a d§fendant may admit, not contest, or deny a
violation, notice of the fee for failure to agswer within 20 days, and other

notices as the esurt-administrater Court Admyjnistrator deems appropriate. The

the judietal-buread Judicial Bureau.

* * %

(f) If aperson failsto appear or answer a complaint the buread Bureau shall

enter a default judgment against the person. However, no default judgigent

shall be entered until the filing of a declaration by the hearing officer, ur&&

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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%snilitarv service as defined at 50 App. U.S.C. 8 511 (Servicemembers Civil

Re é\-\ct definitions), except upon order of the hearing officer in accordance

with the Servicemembers Civil Relief Act, 50 App. U.S.C. TitlesI-lIl. The

buread Bureal\shall mail anotice to the person that a default judgment has
been entered. A dgfault judgment may be set aside by the hearing officer for

good cause shown.

(c) A person who violates this section coxgmits a traffic violation as defined
in section 2302 of thistitle and shall be subject 1§ a penalty of $100.00 not less
than $200.00 upon adjudication of afirst violation , ot lessthan
$500.00 upon adjudication of a second or subsequent viglation within any

two-year period, and arecall or suspension of his or her liceQse or privilege to

operate as provided in section 607a or 2506 of thistitle.

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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privilege of al\unlicensed person; or nonresident to operate a motor vehicle,
upon not less thar\10 days' notice, and upon hearing, if requested for
verification of the corwiction records.

(b) Fhe Except as proXided in subsection (c) of this section, a suspension

shall be for 10 days for an ackumulation of 10 points, 30 days for 15 points,

90 days for 20 points and for a p&iod increasing by 30 days for each additional
5 points-except-the.
(c) The suspension period for a convition for afirst effense violation of
sections 1091, 1094, 1128, and 1133 of thisNtle shall be 30 days;, for a second
conviction 90 days, and for athird or subsequenyconviction six months, or the
suspension period under the point values, whichev

isgreater. The

suspension period for a conviction for a second violatioN of section 1099 of

thistitle shall be 60 days, for athird or subsequent convichn 120 days, or the

suspension period under the point values, whichever is greater.

(d) If afatality occurs, the suspension shall be for a period of ong year in

addition to the suspension under thepeirt-vatues subsections (b) and (&), of this

section.

VT LEG #284832 v.4
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ong year shall equal 365 days.

* * Registration, Titling, and Inspection Cost Recovery Fees* * *
Sec. 23. QV.S.A. chapter 136 is added to read:

CNAPTER 136. VEHICLE RENTAL AGREEMENTS

§4411. REGIQRATION, TITLING, AND INSPECTION COST

RECOVERY FEES

(8) Asusedin this jon:

(1) “Registration, titling, and inspection cost recovery fee’ means a

charge that may be separately st and charged by arental company in a

vehicle rental contract entered intc%\this State to recover reqistration, titling,

and inspection costs incurred in this St% “Registration, titling, and

inspection cost recovery fee’ does not incm afeeto recover any state or

local taxes.

(2) “Rental company” means a person offering for rent for periods of

less than one year avehicle described in 32 V.S.A. § 8982(9).

(b) A rental company may include separately stated f;or chargesina

rental agreement, which may include aregistration, titling, an}\‘uspection cost

recovery fee, airport access fee, airport concession fee, and any apphicable tax.

(c) If arental company includes aregistration, titling, and inspec%qcost

recovery fee as a separately stated charge in arental agreement, the amouniof
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que required to recover its actual total annual titling, registration, and

i nspeciion costs.

(d)( 1)\[ the total amount of the registration, titling, and inspection cost

recovery feAxllected by arental company under this section in any calendar

year exceedsth>ental company’s actual titling, registration, and inspection

costs for that calendayear, the rental company shall:

(A) retain the amount; and

(B) adjust the req&ati on, titling, and inspection cost recovery fee for

the following calendar year by a%sorresponding amount needed to &liminate the

EXCESS.

(2) Nothingin this section shall phgvent arental company from adjusting

the registration, titling, and inspection cos&overv fee during acadendar vear.

* * * \Vehicular Moving VioNgtion * * *
Sec. 24. 23 V.SA. § 1002 is amended to read:

§1002. Repealed: A person who violates any prdyision of this title while
operating a motor vehicle on a public highway commika traffic violation and
shall be subject to a fine of not more than $1,000.00\ However, a person
adjudicated of a violation of this section shall not be a&ssed points under
chapter 25 of thistitle.

* * * \Waiver of Assessment of Points* * *
Sec. 25. 23 V.SA. 8 2501 is amended to read:
8§ 2501. MOTOR VEHICLE POINT SYSTEM

For the purpose of identifying habitually reckless or negligent drivds and
frequent violators of traffic regulations governing the movement of vehi
uniform system is established assigning demerit points for convictions\of
violations of this title or of ordinances adopted by local authorities regulati
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equiNment, size; or weight, or if a superior judge or Judicial Bureau hearing

officer\has waived the assessment of points. The conviction report from the
| be prima facie evidence of the points assessed. The departmentis
t also is authorized to suspend the license of a driver when the

section 673a & thistitle.
Sec. 26. 23 V.SA,. § 2502 is amended to read:
§2502. POINT A SSMENT: SCHEDULE

(a) Any Unless the\assessment of points iswaived by a superior court judge
or a Judicial Bureau oXicer in the interests of justice, or unless a person is
convicted of violating 23\V.SA. § 1002, a person operating a motor vehicle
shall have points assessed against his or her driving record for convictions for
moving violations of the ind\ated motor vehicle statutes in accord with the
following schedule: (All refergnces are to Title 23 of the Vermont Statutes
Annotated.)

8§ 2505. SUSPENSION OR REVOCATION OF LICENSE
When a person receives a-admber-of conNgtionsfor-meoving-violati

sufficient-to-raise-his-or-herpeint-total-to at exst 10 pointsin a two-year
period, the eemmissioner Commissioner shall irfiate suspension proceedings
pursuant to section 2506 of thistitle.

* * * Effective Dates * *

Sec. 24.28 EFFECTIVE DATES

(a) This section and Sec. 19 of this act shall take effect oN passage.

(b)(1) Sec. 1 of this act shall take effect on July 1, 2013, if%e deletion of

“liquor investigators’ from the definition of “enforcement officers’

for in 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 17, Sec. 4 takes effect on or before

July 1, 2013.
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“liguor investigareks._from the definition of “enforcement officers’ provided

forin 2011 Acts and m 4 does not take effect on or before

July 1, 2013.

* * * Definitions* * *
Sec. 1. 23 V.SA. §4(11) isamended to read:
(11) “ Enforcement officers’ shall include:
(A) the following persons certified pursuant to 20 V.SA. § 2358:

sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, constables whose authority has not been limited under
24 V.SA. 81936a, police officers, state's attorneys, capitol police officers,
motor vehicle inspectors, state game wardens, and state police-and;

(B) for enforcement of offenses relating to parking of motor vehicles,
meter checkers; and other duly authorized employees of a municipality
employed to assist in the enforcement of parking regulations—Enfercement
sreneel challaloo pealioer

(C) for enforcement of nonmoving traffic violations enumerated in
subdivisions 2302(a)(1), (2), (3) and (4) of thIS t|t|e duly authorlzed
employees of the de »
Department of Motor Vehicles. Such empl oyees may issue compl aints Felated
to-thelradministrative-duties; pursdantto-4-\LSA-8-1105; in accordance with
4V.SA. §1105.

Sec. 2. 23V.SA. §4(11) isamended to read:
(11) * Enforcement officers’ shall include:

(A) the following persons certified pursuant to 20 V.SA. § 2358:
sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, constables whose authority has not been limited under
24V.SA. 81936a, police officers, state’'s attorneys, capitol police officers,
motor vehicle inspectors, liquor investigators, state game wardens, and state
policeand;

(B) for enforcement of offenses relating to parking of motor vehicles,
meter checkers; and other duly authorized employees of a municipality
employed to assist in the enforcement of parking regulations—*Enfercement
]
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(C) for enforcement of nonmoving traffic violations enumerated in
subdivisions 2302(a)(1), (2), (3), and (4) of this title, duly authorized
employees of the department—of rotor—vehicles for—thepurpose—of-issuing
Department of Motor Vehicles. Such employees may issue complaints related
to-thelradministrative-duties; pursdantto-4-\LSA-8-1105; in accordance with
4V.SA. §1105.

Sec. 3. 23 V.SA. §4(42) isamended to read:

(42) *“Transporter” shall mean a person engaged in the business of
delivering vehicles of a type required to be registered hereunder from a
manufacturing, assembling, or distributing plant to dealers or sales agents of
a manufacturer, and includes persons regularly engaged in the business of
towing trailer coaches, owned by them or temporarily in their custody, on
thelr own wheels over public highways, persons towing office trailers owned
by them or temporarily in their custody, on their own wheels over public
highways, persons regularly engaged and properly licensed for the short-term
rental of “storage trailers’” owned by them and who move these storage
trailers on their own wheels over public highways, and persons regularly
engaged in the business of moving modular homes over public highways and
shall also include dealers and automobile repair shop owners when engaged
in the transportation of motor vehicles to and from their place of business for

repair purposes. “ Transporter” shall also include ether—persons—firms-or
corporations the following, provided that the transportation and delivery of

motor vehicles is a common and usual incident to the-repessession-of-metor
vehicles in-connection-with their business: persons towing overwidth trailers
owned by them in connection with their business; persons whose business is
the repossession of motor vehicles; and persons whose business involves
moving vehicles from the place of business of a registered dealer to another
registered dealer, leased vehicles to the lessor at the expiration of the lease,
or_vehicles purchased at the place of auction of an auction dealer to the
purchaser. Ferpurpeses-of As used in this subdivision, “ short-term rental”
shall mean a period of less than one year. Additionally, as used in this
subdivision, “ repossession” shall include the transport of a repossessed
vehicle to a location specified by the lienholder or owner at whose direction
the vehicle was repossessed. Before a person may become licensed as a
transporter, he or she shall present proof of compliance with section 800 of
this title. He or she shall also either own or lease a permanent place of
business located in this state Sate where business shall be conducted during
regularly established business hours and the required records stored and
maintai ned.
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* * * Placards for Personswith Disabilities* * *
Sec. 4. 23 V.SA. §304a(c) isamended to read:
(c) Vehicles with special registration plates or removable windshield

placards from any state erwhich-have-a-handicapped-parking-card-tssued-by
the-commissionerof-metor-vehieles may use the special parking spaces when:

(1) the eard-or placard is displayed in-thetower—+ight-side—of-the
windshield-or:
(A) by hanging it from the front windshield rearview mirror in such a
manner that it may be viewed from the front and rear of the vehicle; or

(B) if the vehicle has no rearview mirror, on the dashboard:;
(2) the plateis mounted as provided in section 511 of thistitle; or

(3) the plate is mounted or the placard displayed as provided by the law
of the state jurisdiction where the vehicle isregistered.

* * * Temporary Registrations* * *
Sec. 5. 23 V.SA. §305(d) is amended to read:

(d) Wnhen a registration for a motor vehicle, snowmobile, motorboat, or
all-terrain vehicle is processed electronically, a receipt shall be available for
printing. The receipt shall serve as a temporary registration. To be valid, the
temporary registration shall be in the possession of the operator at all times,
and it shall expire ten days after the date of the transaction.

* * * Registration Fees, Taxeson Trailers* * *
Sec. 6. 23 V.SA. 8 371(a) isamended to read:
§ 371. TRAILER AND SEMI-TRAILER

(@)(1) The one-year and two-year fees for registration of a trailer or
semi-trailer, except a contractor’strailer or farmtrailer, shall be as follows:

(A) $25.00 and $48.00, respectively, when such trailer or semi-trailer
has a gross weight of trailer and load of tessthan 1,500 pounds or less,

(B) $49.00 and $96.00, respectively, when such trailer or semi-trailer
has a gross weight of trailer and load of more than 1,500 pounds erere; and
isdrawn by a vehicle of the pleasure car type;

(C) $49.00 and $96.00, respectively, when such trailer or
semi-trailer is drawn by a motor truck or tractor, when such trailer or
semi-trailer has a gross weight of more than 1,500 pounds er+rere; but netn
exeess-of |ess than 3,000 pounds,
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(D) $49.00 and $96.00, respectively, when such trailer or
semi-trailer is used in combination with a truck-tractor or motor truck
registered at the fee provided for combined vehicles under section 367 of this
title. Excepting for the fees, the provisions of this subdivision shall not apply
to trailer coaches as defined in section 4 of this title nor to modular homes
being transported by trailer or semi-trailer.

(2) The one-year and two-year fees for registration of a contractor's
trailer shall be $145.00 and $290.00, respectively.

* * * Biennial Motorboat Registration * * *
Sec. 7. 23 V.SA. § 3305 isamended to read:
§3305. FEES

(&) A person shall not operate a motorboat on the public waters of this
state unless the motorboat is registered in accordance with this chapter.

(b) Annually or biennially, the owner of each motorboat required to be
registered by this state shall file an application for a number with the
commissioner—of—metor—vehicles Commissioner of Motor Vehicles on forms
approved by him or her. The application shall be signed by the owner of the
motorboat and shall be accompanied by a an annual fee of $22.00 and a
surcharge of $5.00, or a biennial fee of $39.00 and a surcharge of $10.00, for
a motorboat in class A; by a an annual fee of $33.00 and a surcharge of
$10.00, or a biennial fee of $61.00 and a surcharge of $20.00, for a motorboat
in class1; by a an annual fee of $60.00 and a surcharge of $10.00, or a
biennial fee of $115.00 and a surcharge of $20.00, for a motorboat in class 2;
by a an annual fee of $126.00 and a surcharge of $10.00, or a biennial fee of
$247.00 and a surcharge of $20.00, for a motorboat in class 3. Upon receipt
of the application in approved form, the eermrmisstener Commissioner shall
enter the application upon the records of the departrent-of-meter—vehicles
Department of Motor Vehicles and issue to the applicant a registration
certificate stating the number awarded to the motorboat and the name and
address of the owner. The owner shall paint on or attach to each side of the
bow of the motorboat the identification number in such manner as may be
prescribed by rules of the eermmissioner Commissioner in order that it may be
clearly visible. Theregistration shall be void one year fromthe first day of the
month following the month of issue in the case of annual registrations, or void
two years from the first day of the month following the month of issue in the
case of biennial registrations. A vessel of less than 10 horsepower used as a
tender to a registered vessel shall be deemed registered, at no additional cost,
and shall have painted or attached to both sides of the bow, the same
registration number as the registered vessel with the number “1” after the
number. The number shall be maintained in legible condition. The
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registration certificate shall be pocket size and shall be available at all times
for inspection on the motorboat for which issued, whenever the motorboat isin
operation. A duplicate registration may be obtained upon payment of a fee of
$2.00 to the eormmissioner Commissioner. Notwithstanding section 3319 of
this chapter, $5.00 of each registration fee shall be allocated to the
transpertation—fund Transportation Fund. The remainder of the fee shall be
allocated in accordance with section 3319 of thistitle.

* * %

(d)(1) Registration of a motorboat ends when the owner transfers title to
another. The former owner shall immediately return directly to the
commissioner Commissioner the registration certificate previously assigned to
the transferred motorboat with the date of sale and the name and residence of
the new owner endor sed on the back of the certificate.

(2) When a person transfers the ownership of a registered motorboat to
another, files a new application and pays a fee of $5.00, he or she may have
registered in his or her name another motorboat of the same class for the
remainder of the registration year period without payment of any additional
registration fee. However, if the fee for the registration of the motorboat
sought to be registered is greater than the registration fee for the transferred
motor boat, the applicant shall pay the difference between the fee first paid and
the fee for the class motorboat sought to be registered.

* * %

() Every registration certificate awarded under this subchapter shall

continue in effect for—one-year—from-thefirst-day-of-the-rmenth-of issue as

prescribed in subsection (b) of this section unless sooner ended under this
chapter. The registration certificate may be renewed by the owner in the same
manner provided for in securing theinitial certificate.

* * %

* * * Off-Ste Display of Vehiclesby Dealers™* * *
Sec. 8. 23 V.SA. §451(b) isamended to read:

(b) With the prior approval of the commissioner Commissioner, a Vermont
dealer may display vehicles on a temporary basis, but in no instance for more
than 20 14 days, at fairs, shows, exhibitions, and other off-site locations within
the manufacturer’s stated area of responsibility in the franchise agreement.
No sales may be transacted at these off-site off-site locations. A dealer
desiring to display vehicles temporarily at an off-site location shall notify the
commissioner Commissioner in a manner prescribed by the eermissioner
Commissioner no less than two days prior to thefirst day for which approval is
requested.
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* * * Penalties for Unauthorized Operation by Junior Operators and
Learner’s Permit Holders* * *

Sec. 9. 23 V.SA. §607aisamended to read:

§607a. RECALL OF LEARNER'S PERMIT OR JUNIOR OPERATOR'S
LICENSE

(@ A learner’s permit or junior operator’s license shall contain an
admonition that it is recallable and that the later procurement of an operator’s
license is conditional on the establishment of a record which is satisfactory to
the eemmissioner Commissioner and showing compliance with the motor
vehicle laws of this and other states. The eemrissioner Commissioner may
recall any permit or license issued to a minor whenever he or sheis satisfied,
from information provided by a credible person and upon investigation, that
the operator is mentally or physically unfit or, because of his or her habits or
record as to accidents or convictions, is unsafe to be trusted with the operation
of motor vehicles. On recommendation of a diversion or reparative board, the
commissioner Commissioner may recall the learner’s permit or junior
operator’s license of a person in a diversion or reparative program for up to
30days. The eemmissioner Commissioner shall also recall any learner’s
permit or junior operator’s license for 30days when an operator is
adjudicated of a single texting violation under section 1099 of this title,
90 days following adjudication of a single speeding violation resulting in a
three-point assessment, 90days when a total of sixpoints has been
accumulated, or 90 days when an operator is adjudicated of a violation of
seetton-678 subsection 614(c) or 615(a) of thistitle. When a learner’s permit
or junior operator’s license is so recalled, it shall be reinstated upon
expiration of a specific term, and, if required by the eemmissioner
Commissioner, when the person has passed a reexamination approved by the
commissiener Commissioner.

(b) When a license or permit is recalled under the provisions of this
section, the person whose license or_permit is so recalled shall have the same
right of hearing before the eemmissioner Commissioner as is provided in
subsection 671(a) of thistitle.

(c) Except for arecall based solely upon the provisions of subsection (d) of
this section, any recall of a license or permit may extend past the operator’s
18th birthday. While the recall is still in effect, that operator shall be
ineligible for any operator’s license.

(d) The eommissioner Commissioner shall recall a learner’s permit or
junior operator’s license upon written request of the individual’s custodial
parent or guardian.
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(e) Any recall period under this section shall run concurrently with any
suspension period imposed under chapter 13 of thistitle.

Sec. 10. 23 V.SA. 8 614 isamended to read:
8614. RIGHTSUNDER LICENSE

(8) An operator’s license shall entitle the holder to operate a registered
motor vehicle with the consent of the owner whether employed to do so or not.

(b) A junior operator’s license shall entitle the holder to operate a
registered motor vehicle; with the consent of the owner, but shall not entitle
him or her to operate a motor vehicle in the course of his or her employment
or for direct or indirect compensation for one year following issuance of the
license, except that the holder may operate a farm tractor with or without
compensation upon a public highway in going to and from different parts of a
farm of the tractor’s owner or to go to any repair shop for repair purposes. A
junior operator’s license shall not entitle the holder to carry passengers for
hire.

(c) During the first three months of operation, the holder of a junior
operator’s license is restricted to driving alone or with a licensed parent or
guardian, licensed or certified driver education instructor, or licensed person
at least 25 years of age. During the following three months, a junior operator
may additionally transport family members. No person operating with a junior
operator’s license shall transport more passengers than there are safety belts
unless he or she is operating a vehicle that has not been manufactured with a
federally approved safety belt system. A person convicted of operating a motor
vehicle in violation of this subsection shall be subject to a penalty of not more
than $50.00, and his or her license shall be recalled for a period of 90 days.
The provisions of this subsection may be enforced only if a law enforcement
officer has detained the operator for a suspected violation of another traffic
offense.

Sec. 11. 23 V.SA. 8615 isamended to read:

§ 615. UNLICENSED OPERATORS

(8)(1) An unlicensed person 15 years of age or older; may operate a motor
vehicle if he or she has-th—pessession; possesses a valid learner’s permit
issued to him or her by the eermmissioner Commissioner and if their his or her
licensed parent or guardian, licensed or certified driver education instructor,
or a licensed person at least 25 years of age rides beside him or her. Nothing
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in this section shall be construed to permit a person against whom a
revocation or suspension of license is in force, or a person less than 15 years
of age, or a person who has been refused a license by the eemmissioner;
Commissioner to operate a motor vehicle.

(2) A licensed person who does not possess a valid motorcycle
endorsement may operate a motorcycle, with no passengers, only during
daylight hours and then only if he or she has upon his or her person a valid
motorcycle learner’s permit issued to him or her by the eemrissioner
Commissioner.

A person convicted of operatmq a motor vehlcle in V|olat|on of thls section

shall be subject to a penalty of not more than $50.00, and his or her learner’s
permit shall be recalled for a period of 90 days. No person may be issued
traffic complaints alleging a violation of this section and a violation of section
676 of this title from the same incident. The provisions of this section may be
enforced only if a law enforcement officer has detained the operator for a
suspected violation of another traffic offense.

Sec. 12. REPEAL
23 V.SA. § 678 (penalties for unauthorized operation) is repealed.

* * * Nondriver Identification Cards * * *
Sec. 13. 23 V.SA. 8 115 isamended to read:
8 115. NONDRIVER IDENTIFICATION CARDS

(@ Any Vermont resident may make application to the eommissioner
Commissioner and be issued an identification card which is attested by the
commissioner Commissioner as to true name, correct age, residential address
unless the listing of another address is requested by the applicant or is
otherwise authorized by law, and any other identifying data as the
commissioner Commissioner may require which shall include, in the case of
minor applicants, the written consent of the applicant’s parent, guardian, or
other person standing in loco parentis. Every application for an identification
card shall be signed by the applicant and shall contain such evidence of age
and identity as the eermissioner Commissioner may require. New and
renewal application forms shall include a space for the applicant to request
that a “ veteran” designation be placed on his or her identification card. If a
veteran, as defined in 38 U.SC. 8§ 101(2), requests a veteran designation and
provides a Department of Defense Form 214 or other proof of veteran status
specified by the Commissioner, and the Office of Veterans Affairs confirms his
or_her status as an honorably discharged veteran or a veteran discharged
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under honorable conditions, the identification card shall include the term
“veteran” onitsface. The eemmissioner Commissioner shall require payment
of a fee of $20.00 at the time application for an identification card is made.

code encoded with minimum data elements as prescribed in 6 C.F.R. § 37.19.

* * * | icense Certificates * * *
Sec. 14. 23 V.S A. 8 603 isamended to read:
8 603. APPLICATION FOR AND |ISSUANCE OF LICENSE

(8)(1) The eemmissioner Commissioner or his or her authorized agent may
license operators and junior operators when an application, on a form
prescribed by the eermmissioner Commissioner, signed and sworn to by the
applicant for the license, is filed with him or her, accompanied by the required
license fee and any valid license from another state or Canadian jurisdiction is
surrendered.

(2) The commissioner Commissioner may, however, in his or her
discretion, refuse to issue a license to any person whenever he or she is
satisfied from information given him or her by credible persons, and upon
investigation, that the person is mentally or physically unfit, or because of his
or her habits, or record as to accidents or convictions, is unsafe to be trusted
with the operation of motor vehicles. A person refused a license, under the
provisions of this subsection or section 605 of this title, shall be entitled to
hearing as provided in sections 105-107 of thistitle.

(3) _Any new or renewal application form shall include a space for the
applicant to request that a “ veteran” designation be placed on his or her
license certificate. An applicant who requests the designation shall provide a
Department of Defense Form 214, or other proof of veteran status specified by
the Commissioner.

* * %

Sec. 15. 23 V.SA. 8610 isamended to read:
8 610. LICENSE CERTIFICATES

(&) The eommisstoner Commissioner shall assign a distinguishing number
to each licensee and shall furnish the licensee with a license certificate;

VT LEG #284832 v.4



BILL ASINTRODUCED AND PASSED BY SENATE AND HOUSE S.150
2013 Page 34 of 45

shewing that shows the number; and the licensee' s full name, date of birth, and
residential address, except that at the request of the licensee, the licensee's
mailing address may be listed, or an alternative address may be listed if
otherwise authorized by law. The certificate also shall include a brief physical
description,-anrd-mating-address and a space for the signature of the licensee.
The license shall be void until signed by the licensee. If a veteran, as defined
in 38 U.SC. §101(2), requests a veteran designation and provides proof of
veteran status as specified in subdivision 603(a)(3) of this title, and the Office
of Veterans Affairs confirms his or her status as an honorably discharged
veteran or a veteran discharged under honorable conditions, the license
certificate shall include the term“ veteran” on its face.

* * %

(c) Each license certificate issued to a first-time applicant and each
subsequent renewal by that person shall be issued with the photograph or
imaged likeness of the licensee included on the certificate. The eemrissioner
Commlssoner shall determl ne the Iocatlons where photographlc licenses may

Aperson |ssued a Ilcense under thls subsectlon that contains an |maged
likeness may renew his or her license by mail. Except that a renewal by a
licensee required to have a photograph or imaged likeness under this
subsection must be made in person so that an updated imaged likeness of the
person is obtained no less often than once every eight years.

(d) Each license certificate issued to an initial or renewal applicant shall
include a bar code with minimum data elements as prescribed in 6 C.F.R.
8 37.19.

Sec. 16. 23 V.SA. 87 isamended to read:

§ 7. ENHANCED DRIVER LICENSE; MAINTENANCE OF DATABASE
INFORMATION; FEE

(@) The face of an enhanced license shall contain the individual’s name,
date of birth, gender, a unique identification number, full facial photograph or
imaged likeness, address, signature, issuance and expiration dates, and
citizenship, and, if applicable, a veteran designation. The back of the
enhanced license shall have a machine-readable zone. A Gen 2 vicinity Radio
Freguency Identification chip shall be embedded in the enhanced license in
compliance with the security standards of the U.S. Department of Homeland
Security. Any additional personal identity information not currently required
by the Department of Homeland Security shall need the approval of either the

general—assermbly General Assembly or the legislative—committee—on
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administrativerules Legislative Committee on Administrative Rules prior to
the implementation of the requirements.

(b) Inaddition to any other requirement of law or rule, before an enhanced
license may be issued to a person, the person shall present for inspection and
copying satisfactory documentary evidence to determine identity and United
States citizenship. An application shall be accompanied by: a photo identity
document, documentation showing the person’s date and place of birth, proof
of the person’s Social Security number, and documentation showing the
person’s principal residence address. New and renewal application forms
shall include a space for the applicant to request that a “ veteran” designation
be placed on the enhanced license. If a veteran, as defined in 38 U.SC.
8101(2), requests a veteran designation and provides a Department of
Defense Form 214 or other proof of veteran status specified by the
Commissioner, and the Office of Veterans Affairs confirms his or her status as
an honorably discharged veteran or a veteran discharged under honorable
conditions, the identification card shall include the term * veteran” on its face.
To be issued, an enhanced license must meet the same requirements as those
for the issuance of a United States passport. Before an application may be
processed, the documents and information shall be verified as determined by
the eermmissioner Commissioner. Any additional personal identity information
not currently required by the U.S Department of Homeland Security shall
need the approval of either the generalassembly General Assembly or the
legishative—ecommittee—on—administrative—+ules Legidative Committee on

Administrative Rules prior to the implementation of the requirements.

(c) No person shall compile or maintain a database of electronically
readable information derived from an operator’s license, junior operator’s
license, enhanced license, learner permit, or nondriver identification card.
This prohibition shall not apply to a person who accesses, uses, compiles, or
maintains a database of the information for law enforcement or governmental
purposes or for the prevention of fraud or abuse or other criminal conduct.

* %
* * * Driver Training Instructors* * *
Sec. 17. 23 V.SA. § 705 is amended to read:
8§ 705. QUALIFICATIONSFOR INSTRUCTOR' SLICENSE
In order to qualify for an instructor’s license, each applicant shall:
(1) not have been convicted of:

(A) afelony nor incarcerated for a felony within the 10 years prior to
the date of application; er
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(B) a violation of section 1201 of this title; or a eonvietion like
offense in another jurisdiction reported to the eemmissioner Commissioner
pursuant to subdivision 3905(a)(2) of this title within the three years prior to
the date of application; er

(C) a subsequent eenvictionfor—an violation of an offense listed in
subdivision 2502(a)(5) of thistitle or of section 674 of thistitle; or

(D) a sex offense that requires registration pursuant to 13 V.SA.
chapter 167, subchapter 3:

* * %

* * * Operating on Closed Highways * * *
Sec. 18. 23 V.SA. §1112 isamended to read:
§1112. CLOSED HIGHWAYS

(a) Except by thewritten permit of the authority responsible for the closing,
ne a person shall not drive any vehicle over any highway across which thereis
a barrier or a sign indicating that the highway is closed to public travel.

(b) An authority responsible for closing a highway to public travel may
erect a sign, which shall be visible to highway users and proximate to the
barrier or sign indicating that the highway is closed to public travel,
indicating that violators are subject to penalties and civil damages.

(c) A municipal, county, or state entity that deploys police, fire, ambulance,
rescue, or other emergency services in order to aid a stranded operator of a
vehicle, or to move a disabled vehicle, operated on a closed highway in
violation of this section, may recover from the operator in a civil action the
cost of providing the services, if at the time of the violation a sign satisfying the
reguirements of subsection (b) of this section was installed.

* * * DUI Suspensions; Credit * * *
Sec. 19. 23 V.SA. § 1205(p) is amended to read:

(p) Suspensions to run concurrently. Suspensions imposed under this
section or any comparable statute of any other jurisdiction and sections 1206,
1208, and 1216 of this title or any comparable statutes of any other
jurisdiction, or any suspension resulting from a conviction for a violation of
section 1091 of this title from the same incident, shall run concurrently and a
person shall receive credit for any elapsed period of a suspension served in
Vermont agaj nst a Iater suspensuon |mposed in thls Shele S:ate l—H—GI’—delLfGF
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Sec. 20. 23 V.SA. §1216(i) is amended to read:

(i) Suspensions imposed under this section or any comparable statute of
any other jurisdiction shall run concurrently with suspensions imposed under
sections 1205, 1206, and 1208 of this title or any comparable statutes of any
other jurisdiction or with any suspension resulting from a conviction for a
violation of section 1091 of thistitle from the same incident, and a person shall
receive credit for any elapsed period of a suspension served in Vermont

agal nst a Iater suspens on |mp0$d in this state Sate. Jrneltder—tepsaspenslen

* * * Srens and Lights on Exhibition Vehicles* * *
Sec. 21. 23 V.SA. § 1252 is amended to read:
§ 1252. USESOF ISSUANCE OF PERMITS FOR SRENS OR COLORED

LAMPSOR BOTH; USE OF AMBER LAMPS

(& When satisfied as to the condition and use of the vehicle, the
commisstoner Commissioner shall issue and may revoke, for cause, permits for
sirensor colored signal lampsin the following manner:

(1) Srensor blue or blue and white signal lamps, or a combination of
these, may be authorized for all law enforcement vehicles; owned or leased by
a law enforcement agency er, a certified law enforcement officer and-, or the
Vermont Criminal Justice Training Council. If the applicant is a constable,
the application shall be accompanied by a certification by the town clerk that
the applicant is the duly elected or appointed constable and attesting that the
town has not voted to limit the constable' s authority to engage in enforcement
activitiesunder 24 V.SA. § 1936a.

(2) Srensand red or red and white signal lamps may be authorized for
all ambulances, fire apparatus, vehicles used solely in rescue operations, or
vehicles owned or leased by, or provided to, volunteer firemen firefighters and
voluntary rescue squad members, including a vehicle owned by a volunteer’s
employer when the volunteer has the written authorization of the employer to
use the vehicle for emergency fire or rescue activities and-metor-vehicles-used

solely in rescue operations.

(3) No vehicle may be authorized a permit for more than one of the
combinations described in subdivisions (1) and (2) of this subsection.

(4)

motor vehicle, other than one owned by the appllcant shall be |ssued a permlt

until sueh-tire-as the commissioner—can-adeguately-record Commissioner has

recorded the information regarding both the owner of the vehicle and the
applicant for the permit.
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(5) Upon application to the eemmissioner Commissioner, the
commissioner Commissioner may issue a single permit for all the vehicles
owned or leased by the applicant.

(6) Srensand red or red and white signal lamps, or sirens and blue or
blue and white signal lamps, may be authorized for restored emergency or
enforcement vehicles used for exhibition purposes. Srens and lamps
authorized under this subdivision may only be activated during an exhibition,
such as a car show or parade.

* * %

* * * Motor Vehicle Arbitration Board; Administrative Support * * *
Sec. 22. 9V.SA. §4174 isamended to read:
§4174. VERMONT MOTOR VEHICLE ARBITRATION BOARD

(@) There is created a Vermont meter—vehicte—arbitration-beard Motor
Vehicle Arbitration Board consisting of five members and three alternate
members to be appointed by the geverner Governor for terms of three years.
Board members may be appointed for two additional three-year terms. One
member of the beard Board and one alternate shall be new car dealers in
Vermont, one member and one alternate shall be persons active as automobile
technicians, and three members and one alternate shall be persons having no
direct involvement in the design, manufacture, distribution, sales, or service of
motor vehicles or their parts. Board members shall be compensated in
accordance with the prowsons of 32VSA §81010. Fhe board-shalbe

sewrees#mm%h&depaﬁment—ef—mete#whrel&s Adm| nlstratlve support for the

Board shall be provided as deter mined by the Secretary of Transportation.

* * %

* * * Traffic Violations; Judicial Bureau * * *
Sec. 23. 4V.SA. 81105 isamended to read:
8§ 1105. ANSWER TO COMPLAINT: DEFAULT

(@) A violation shall be charged upon a summons and complaint form
approved and distributed by the eourt-administrator Court Administrator. The
complaint shall be signed by the issuing officer or by the state’s attorney. The
original shall be filed with the judicial-buread; Judicial Bureau; a copy shall
be retained by the issuing officer or state’s attorney and two copies shall be
given to the defendant. The Judicial Bureau may, consistent with rules
adopted by the Supreme Court pursuant to 12 V.SA. 81, accept electronic
signatures on any document, including the signatures of issuing officers,
state's attorneys, and notaries public. The complaint shall include a statement
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of rights, instructions, notice that a defendant may admit, not contest, or deny
a violation, notice of the fee for failure to answer within 20 days, and other
notices as the court—administrator Court Administrator deems appropriate.
The court-administrator Court Administrator, in consultation with appropriate
law enforcement agencies, may approve a single form for charging all
violations, or may approve two or more forms as necessary to administer the

operations of the judictal-bureaud Judicial Bureau.

* * %

() If a person fails to appear or answer a complaint the buread Bureau
shall enter a default judgment against the person. However, no default
judgment shall be entered until the filing of a declaration by the issuing officer
or_state's attorney, under penalty of perjury, setting forth facts showing that
the defendant is not a person in military service as defined at 50 App. U.S.C.
8511 (Servicemembers Civil Relief Act definitions), except upon order of the
hearing officer in accordance with the Servicemembers Civil Relief Act,
50 App. U.SC. Titles I-ll. The bureay Bureau shall mail a notice to the
person that a default judgment has been entered. A default judgment may be
set aside by the hearing officer for good cause shown.

* * %

* * * Texting While Driving; Penalties* * *
Sec. 24. 23 V.SA. § 1099 is amended to read:
§1099. TEXTING PROHIBITED

* * %

(c) A person who violates this section commits a traffic violation as defined
in section 2302 of this title and shall be subject to a penalty of not less than
$100.00 and not more than $200.00 upon adjudication of a first violation, and
of not less than $250.00 and not more than $500.00 upon adjudication of a
second or subsequent violation within any two-year period.

* * * Portable Electronic Devicesin Work Zones * * *
Sec. 25. 23 V.SA. 84(5) isamended to read:

(5) “Construction area” shaH-mean-and-eclude-aH-of-thatpertion or

“work zone” or “work site” means an area of a highway whie—under
undergoing construction, maintenance, or utility work activities by order or
with the permission of the state State or a municipality thereof; that is

de&qnated by and Iocated Wlthln properly posted warnlng sgnsmal-ntal-ned—at
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Sec. 26. 23 V.SA. § 1095b isadded to read:

§ 1095b. HANDHELD USE OF PORTABLE ELECTRONIC DEVICE IN
WORK ZONE PROHIBITED

(a) Definition. As used in this section, “ hands-free use” means the use of a
portable €electronic device without use of either hand and outside the
immediate proximity of the user’s ear, by employing an internal feature of, or
an attachment to, the device.

(b) Use of handheld portable electronic device in work zone prohibited. A
person shall not use a portable electronic device while operating a moving
motor vehicle within a highway work zone. The prohibition of this subsection
shall not apply unless the work zone is properly designated with warning
devices in accordance with subdivision 4(5) of thistitle, and shall not apply:

(1) to hands-free use; or

(2) when use of a portable electronic device is necessary to
communicate with law enforcement or emergency service personnel under
€emergency circumstances.

(c) Penalty. A person who violates this section commits a traffic violation
and shall be subject to a penalty of not less than $100.00 and not more than
$200.00 upon adjudication of a first violation, and of not less than $250.00
and not more than $500.00 upon adjudication of a second or subsequent
violation within any two-year period.

* * * Assessment of Points* * *
Sec. 27. 23 V.SA. 8§ 2502 is amended to read:
§ 2502. POINT ASSESSMENT:; SCHEDULE

(&) Any person operating a motor vehicle shall have points assessed
against his or her driving record for convictions for moving violations of the
indicated motor vehicle statutes in accord with the following schedule: (Al
references are to Title 23 of the Vermont Satutes Annotated.)

(1) Two points assessed for:

* * %

(LL)({) §1095. Operatingwithtelevision setinstalled

Entertai nment picture visible to operator;

(ii) §1095b. Use of portable electronic device in work zone—
first offense;

(MM) 81099 Texting-prohibited—first-offense;
[Deleted.]
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* * %

(4) Five points assessed for:

© §1099.  Texting prohibited—second-and-subseguent—
sheness
(D) Deleted

§1095b. Use of portable electronic device in work zone—
second and subsequent offenses;

* * %

* * * Prohibited Idling of Motor Vehicles* * *
Sec. 28. 23 V.SA. 81110 is added to subchapter 11 of chapter 13 to read:
§1110. PROHIBITED IDLING OF MOTOR VEHICLES

(a)(1) General prohibition. A person shall not cause or permit operation
of the primary propulsion engine of a motor vehicle for more than five minutes
in any 60-minute period, while the vehicleis stationary.

(2) Exceptions. The five-minute limitation of subdivision (1) of this
subsection shall not apply when:

(A) a military vehicle; an ambulance; a police, fire, or rescue
vehicle; or another vehicle used in a public safety or emergency capacity idles
as necessary for the conduct of official operations;

(B) an armored vehicle idles while a person remains inside the
vehicle to guard the contents or while the vehicleis being loaded or unloaded:;

(C) amotor vehicle idles because of highway traffic conditions, at the
direction of an official traffic control device or signal, or at the direction of a
law enfor cement official;

(D) the health or safety of a vehicle occupant requires idling, or
when a passenger bus idles as necessary to maintain passenger comfort while
nondriver passengers are on board:;

(E) idling is necessary to operate safety equipment such as
windshield defrosters, and operation of the equipment is needed to address
specific safety concerns;

(F) _idling of the primary propulsion engine is needed to power
work-related mechanical, hydraulic, or electrical operations other than
propulsion, such as mixing or processing cargo or straight truck refrigeration,
and the motor vehicleisidled to power such work-related operations;

VT LEG #284832 v.4



BILL ASINTRODUCED AND PASSED BY SENATE AND HOUSE S.150
2013 Page 42 of 45

(G) a motor vehicle of a model year prior to 2018 with an occupied
sleeper berth compartment isidled for purposes of air-conditioning or heating
during a rest or sleep period;

(H) a motor vehicle idles as necessary for maintenance, service,
repair, or diagnostic purposes or as part of a state or federal inspection;

(1) a school bus idles on school grounds in compliance with rules
adopted pursuant to the provisions of subsection 1282(f) of this title;

(J) the idling of vehicles at the place of business of a registered
motor vehicle dealer is necessary to maintain the premises of the place of
business; or

(K) a motor vehicle with a gross vehicle weight rating of 10,000
pounds or lessidles on a driveway or parking area on private property.

(b) Operation of an auxiliary power unit, generator set, or other mobile
idle reduction technology is an alternative to operating the primary propulsion
engine of a motor vehicle and is not subject to the prohibition of subdivision
(a)(1) of this section.

(c) In addition to the exemptions set forth in subdivision (a)(2) of this
section, the Commissioner of Motor Vehicles, in consultation with the
Secretary of Natural Resources, may adopt rules governing times or
circumstances when operation of the primary propulsion engine of a stationary
motor vehicleis reasonably required.

(d) A person adjudicated of violating subdivision (a)(1) of this section
shall be:

(1) assessed a penalty of not more than $10.00, which penalty shall be
exempt from surcharges under 13 V.SA. 8§ 7282(a), for afirst violation;

(2) assessed a penalty of not more than $50.00 for a second
violation; and

(3) assessed a penalty of not more than $100.00 for a third or
subsequent violation.

Sec. 29. 16 V.SA. § 1045 is amended to read:
8§ 1045. DRIVER TRAINING COURSE

* * %

(d) All driver education courses shall include instruction on the adverse
environmental, health, economic, and other effects of unnecessary idling of
motor vehicles and on the law governing prohibited idling of motor vehicles.
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* * * \/eteran Indicator on Commercial Driver Licenses* * *
Sec. 30. 23 V.SA. 84110(a)(5) isamended to read:

(5) The person’s signature, as well as a space for the applicant to
request that a “veteran” designation be placed on a commercial driver
license. An applicant who requests a veteran designation shall provide a
Department of Defense Form 214, or other proof of veteran status specified by
the Commissioner.

Sec. 31. 23V.SA. 84111 isamended to read:
8§4111. COMMERCIAL DRIVER LICENSE

(&) Contents of license. A commercial driver’s license shall be marked
“commercial driver license” or “CDL,” and shall be, to the maximum extent
practicable, tamper proof, and shall includebut-netbetimited-to the following
information:

* * %

(12) A veteran designation if a veteran, as defined in 38 U.SC.
8101(2), requests the designation and provides proof of veteran status as
specified in subdivision 4110(a)(5) of this title, and if the Office of Veterans
Affairs confirms his or her status as an honorably discharged veteran or a
veteran discharged under honorable conditions.

* * %

* * * \Naiver of Points* * *
Sec. 31a. 23 V.SA. § 2501 isamended to read:
8§ 2501. MOTOR VEHICLE POINT SYSTEM

(a) For the purpose of identifying habitually reckless or negligent drivers
and frequent violators of traffic regulations governing the movement of
vehicles, a uniform system is established assigning demerit points for
convictions of violations of this title or of ordinances adopted by local
authorities regulating the operation of motor vehicles. Notice of each
assessment of points may be given. No points shall be assessed for violating a
provision of a statute or municipal ordinance regulating standing, parking,
equipment, size, or weight, or if a superior judge or Judicial Bureau hearing
officer has waived the assessment of points in the interest of justice and in
accordance with subsection (b) of this section. The conviction report from the
court shall be prima facie evidence of the points assessed unless points are
specifically waived in the conviction report. The department+s Department
also is authorized to suspend the license of a driver when the driver’s driving
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record identifies the driver as an habitual offender under section 673a of this
title.

(b) A superior judge or Judicial Bureau hearing officer may waive the
assessment of points against a person’s driving record for a moving violation
if the waiver of pointsis in the interests of justice, and if all of the following
conditions ar e satisfied:

(1) the person has not had points assessed against his or her driving
record within five years of the date of the moving violation;

(2) the person has had no more than three points assessed against his or
her driving record within 10 years of the date of the moving violation;

(3) the moving violation is an offense for which no more than three
pointsis specified under section 2502 of thistitle;

(4) the person was not operating a commercial motor vehicle as defined
at section 4103 of thistitle at the time of the moving violation; and

(5) the moving violation did not result in bodily injury to another person
or damage to property of another person.

Sec. 31b. 23 V.SA. 8 2502 isamended to read:
8§ 2502. POINT ASSESSMENT; SCHEDULE

(a) Any Unless the assessment of points is waived by a superior judge or a
Judicial Bureau hearing officer in the interests of justice and in accordance
with subsection 2501(b) of this title, a person operating a motor vehicle shall
have points assessed against his or her driving record for convictions for
moving violations of the indicated motor vehicle statutes in accord with the
following schedule: (All references are to Title 23 of the Vermont Statutes
Annotated.)

* * %

* * * Transportation Infrastructure Bond Assessment * * *
Sec. 31c. 23 V.SA. 8 3106(a)(2) isamended to read:

(2) For the purposes of subdivision (1)(B) of this subsection, the
tax-adjusted retail price applicable for a quarter shall be the average of the
monthly retail priees price for regular gasoline determined and published by
the Department of Publlc Servi ce for each of of the three months of the preceding
quarter- '
r&aﬂ—prmeeedwe% after all federal and state taxes and assmsments
and the petroleum distributor licensing fee established by 10 V.SA. 8 1942, at
therates applicable in thepreceding-guarter each month have been subtracted
from that month’s retail price.
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Sec. 31d. 2013 Acts and Resolves No. 12, Sec. 24 is amended to read:

Sec. 24, MOTOR FUEL ASSESSMENTS TAX ASSESSMENT:
MAY 1, 2013-SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Notwithstanding the provisions of 23 V.SA. §3106(a}{1xB)
3106(a)(1)(B)(ii) and 3106(a)(2) from May 1, 2013 through September 30,
2013, the mete

assessment required under 23 V.SA. 8 3106(a)(1)(B)(||) shall be $0.067 per
gallon.

* * * Effective Dates and Sunsets * * *
Sec. 32. EFFECTIVE DATESAND SUNSETS

(a) This section and Secs. 22, 31c, and 31d of this act shall take effect on
passage.

(b)(1) Sec. 1 of this act shall take effect on July 1, 2013, if the deletion of
“liguor investigators’ from the definition of “ enforcement officers’ provided
for in 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 17, Sec. 4 takes effect on or before

July 1, 2013.

(2) Sec. 2 of this act shall take effect on July 1, 2013, if the deletion of
“liquor investigators’ from the definition of “ enforcement officers’ provided
for in 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 17, Sec. 4 does not take effect on or before

July 1, 2013.

() Secs. 25, 26, and in Sec. 27, § 2502(a)(1)(LL) and (a)(4)(D) of this act
shall take effect on January 1, 2014.

(d) Sec. 28 of this act shall take effect on May 1, 2014.
(e) All other sections of this act shall take effect on July 1, 2013.
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